City of Geneva, Illinois

Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

100 South Third Street

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (PIN):

12-03-452-002

HISTORIC NAME: Kane County Courthouse

COMMON NAME: Kane County Courthouse

DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1892

SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES:

ARCHITECT: Edbrooke and Burnham

BUILDER:
WILSON BROTHERS: [ AUGUST [ OSCAR [ BOTH

ARCHITECTURAL DATA:

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: Courthouse, Romanesque Revival

OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Complex

LOCAL SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

NUMBER OF STORIES: 4

[w] significant

FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Stone

|:| Contributing

PRIMARY WALL MATERIAL(S): Brick

|:| Non-Contributing — Built After 1987

|:| Non-Contributing — Reversible Alterations

FRONT PORCH: Commercial Entry

|:| Non-Contributing — Irreversible Alterations

VISIBLE SIDE PORCH:

HISTORIC DISTRICT LOCATION:

ENTRY DOOR(S): Commercial Entry

IE Central Geneva NRHD

WINDOW MATERIAL: Aluminum

|:| North Geneva NRHD

WINDOW STYLE: Fixed, 1 It; Double Hung, 1/1

|E| Local Geneva HD

PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Flat with Square Dome

|:| Not in HD / Individual Historic Landmark

PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Unknown

NR DISTRICT SIGNIFICANCE RATING:

VISIBLE CHIMNEY:

|E| Contributing

|:| Non-Contributing

CHIMNEY MATERIAL:

|:| Not Applicable / Not in NR District

OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES:

HPC ACTION:

|:| Demolition Approved:

Other HPC Action:




City of Geneva, lllinois

Local Historic District & Landmarks
Property Inventory Survey

ADDITIONAL PROPERTY INFORMATION:

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

100 South Third Street

BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION:

The Third Courthouse, located at its present site, was completed in
1857 but was destroyed by fire on March 13, 1890.

After the fire in 1890, the courthouse was rebuilt under the
supervision of architects W.J. Edbrooke and Franklin P. Burnham
from Chicago, with C.A. Moses serving as the general contractor.
The courthouse was officially dedicated on September 30, 1892. The
1892-10-1 issue of the Geneva Republican described the courthouse
and its dedication. It described it as "210 feet long, 103 feet wide and
136 feet to top of dome; built of red pressed brick with terra cotta
trimmings...interior finishing of marble, red oak, and Georgia pine."
The total project cost was $251,531.90, with the actual court house
costing $177,371.96.

In 1910, Edward Holsag of Aurora painted 11 murals in the rotunda
of the courthouse. A large section of the roof was damaged in a fire
again in December 1927, leading to repairs by Bloomdahl & Daggett.

SOURCES:

Geneva Republican; Sanborn Fire Insurance maps; Geneva lllinois, 150 Reminders of
150 Years; Geneva in Vintage Postcards; National Trust for Historic Preservation;
1969 Birds Eye map; Geneva Historical Society, 50th anniversary

CONTRIBUTING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES:

AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

CONTRIBUTING LANDSCAPE FEATURES:

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:
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 After the fire in 1890, the courthouse was rebuilt under the supervision of architects W.J. Edbrooke and Franklin P. Burnham from Chicago, with C.A. Moses serving as the general contractor. The courthouse was officially dedicated on September 30, 1892. The 1892-10-1 issue of the Geneva Republican described the courthouse and its dedication. It described it as "210 feet long, 103 feet wide and 136 feet to top of dome; built of red pressed brick with terra cotta trimmings...interior finishing of marble, red oak, and Georgia pine." The total project cost was $251,531.90, with the actual court house costing $177,371.96. 

In 1910, Edward Holsag of Aurora painted 11 murals in the rotunda of the courthouse. A large section of the roof was damaged in a fire again in December 1927, leading to repairs by Bloomdahl & Daggett.

The building's windows were later replaced by architect Tom Emma after other design proposals were rejected, as reported on August 20, 1981. The exact date when the balustrades were replaced with the current brick parapet is unclear, but this change likely occurred during one of the building’s renovations. When the windows were replaced, many of their original muntin patterns were lost, and additional changes have been made over time with utility needs.

The building still retains much of its original character and use. It is an important landmark in downtown Geneva and relates the area to the greater history of the county.
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